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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Jagaran Microfin Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Jagaran Microfin Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (*Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl’s
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 45 to the financial statements which describes that the potential
impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic on the Company’s financial statements are dependent on
future developments, which are highly uncertain.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Sr. |
Mo,

Key Audit Matter

|’i’ﬁ’i’t’6r"'5 Response

1

Expected credit losses on loans

(Refer Note 7 read with Note 27 to the
financial statements)

The Company has net loan balance
amounting to INR 4,65,50,74,477 as at
March 31, 2020.

Given the size of loan book relative to
the balance sheet and the impact of
impairment provision on the books, we
have considered this as a key audit
matter.

Recognition and measurement of
impairment of loans involve significant
management judgement. Credit loss
assessment under Ind AS 109 is based
on expected credit loss (ECL) model.
The Company’s impairment allowance is
derived from estimates including the
historical default and loss
Collective impairment allowances are
calculated using ECL models which
approximate credit conditions on
homogenous portfolios of loans.

Also, during the year, the Company
has also considered additional
provisions after evaluating the extent
to which COVID-19 pandemic will
impact its overall operations and
performance. Given the uncertainty
over the potential macro-economic
condition, the impact of the global
health pandemic may be different from
that estimated as at the date of
approval of these financial statements.

ratios. |

| significant  assumptions

Our audit procedures in relation to
expected credit losses were focused on
obtaining sufficient appropriate audit
evidence as to whether the expected
credit losses recognised in the financial
statements were reasonable and the
related disclosures in the financial
statements made by the management
were adequate.

These procedures included, but not
limited, to the following:

(2) obtained an understanding of the
model adopted by the Company for
calculation of expected credit losses
including how management calculated
the expected credit losses and the
appropriateness of the data on which
the calculation is based;

(b) Tested the assumptions used by the
Company for staging of loan portfolio
into default buckets for determining the
PD and LGD rates. Tested the input data
used for determining the PD and LGD
rates and agreed the data with the
underlying books of accounts and
records;

(c) Tested samples for staging of loans
based on their past - due status to
check compliance with requirements of
Ind AS 109;

(d) Tested the arithmetical calculation
of the workings of the expected credit
losses;

(e) Tested assumptions used by the
management in  determining the
overlay for macro-economic factors
especially COVID-19 pandemic;

(f) Assessed disclosures included in the
Ind AS financial statements in respect
of expected credit losses including the
specific disclosures made with regard to

the management's evaluation of the

uncertainties arising from COVID-19
and its impact on ECL estimation;

(g) Obtained written representations
from management and those charged
with governance whether they believe
used in
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| calculation of expected credit losses are
_reasonable.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s repoit thereon.

e Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

e If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
ferial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
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to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
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period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019 and
the related transition date opening balance sheet as at April 01, 2018 included in these
financial statements, have been prepared after adjusting previously issued the financial
statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006
to comply with Ind AS. The previously issued financial statements were audited by us and
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Adjustments made to the
previously issued financial statements to comply with Ind AS have been audited by us.

Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified in respect of this the above matters on
the comparative financial information,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)
of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company being a private company, Section 197 of the Act related to
the managerial remuneration is not applicable.

i} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
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opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 302009E)

| QW

Abhijit BAndyopadhyay
Partner

(Membership No. 054785)
UDIN : 20054785AAAABZ6548

Kolkata, July 29, 2020
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ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Jagaran Microfin
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
) jat (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
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that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2020, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No,302009E)

AL b otif

Abhijit Bandyopadhyay
Partner

(Membership No. 054785)
UDIN : 20054785AAAABZ6548

Kolkata, July 29, 2020



Deloitte
Haskins & Sells

ANNEXURE “"B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of
our report of even date)

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) The property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year by the
management in accordance with a regular program of verification, which, in our
opinion, provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable
intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold land
and building and hence reporting under clause (i)(c) of the CARO 2016 is not
applicable

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii) of the CARO
2016 is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees under the provisions of
Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence reporting under Clause (iv) of
the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposit during the year and it did not have any unclaimed deposits at the beginning of the
year. Hence reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business / activities, reporting under clause
(vi) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed dues, including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods & Service Tax, cess and
other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Goods & Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Goods & Service Tax, Service Tax and Value
Added Tax as on March 31, 2020 on account of disputes.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks and
dues to debenture holders. The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from
government.
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(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer during the year. In our
opinion and according to the explanations given to us, money raised by way of further public
offer of debt securities and the term loans have been applied by the Company during the year
for the purposes for which they were raised, other than temporary deployment pending
application of proceeds.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees
has been noticed or reported during the year.

The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies
Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the CARO
2016 Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of Section 177 and Section 188
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and according
to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has disclosed the details of
related party transactions in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable
accounting standards, >

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has made preferential
allotment of shares during the year under review.

In respect of the above issue, we further report that:

a) the requirement of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable, have been
complied with; and

b) the amounts raised have been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes
for which the funds were raised, other than temporary deployment pending application.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of
its holding company or persons connected with them and hence provisions of Section 192 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 and it has obtained the registration.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 302009E)

| ¥ I
lﬁ— -h’.";._.!' 'l|-‘l """L"" _r.l'
Abhijit Bandyopadhyay
Partner

(Membership No. 054785)
UDIN: 20054785AAAABZ6548

Kolkata, July 29, 2020




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

{All amount in %, unless otherwise stated)

Place: Kelkats :
[iste: 28 july 2000

DIN: GEL542a0

1]
T Pratim Sahu
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29 July 2020

Particulars Bobtes As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 01, 2018
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents a 26,73,62,459 28,12,68,879 25,54,96,830
Bank Balances Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents L3 55,99,24,920 33,64,54,499 22,90,28,421
Receivables
(I)Trade Receivables & 1,15,302 14,48,782 48,28,899
Loans T 4,65,50,74,477 3,91,09,12,864 2,28,28,20,553
Investments B 50,33,593 -
Crhear Financal Assety ] 19,38,52,842 15,40,44,327 9,62,27,526
HNon-financlal Azzets
CisTent Tax Asseds [Met| 10 53,20,278 44,36,931 43,68,533
Dieferied Tax Assets (Net) 1t 2,76,67,616 1,16,72,630 62,61,096
Praparly, Plant and Equipment 13 1,10,19,332 1,11,71,872 1,08,33,342
Dthir Intangbie Assets 13 33,96,508 27,28,040 19,64,367
Oihps Nev-Tinancial Assets 14 26,04,100 65,45,357 29,20,917
TOTAL ASSETS LT318,71 400 47206 54, 161 4, 0,47, 50,454 |
LIABILITIES AND EQLITY
L1ASILETHES
Financial Lishilities
Payating
(1) Trade Payables
(i) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises - '
(i) Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors Other than Micro Enterprises and Small 15 1,68,53,409 2,13,97,416 2,18,72,774
Enterprises
Debt Securities 16 80,70,31,446 57,91,23,752 -
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 17.1 3,85,01,49,275 3,29,27,61,405 2,12,57,46,549
Subordinated Liabilities 17.2 5,00,41,802 -
Mon-financial Liabisies
Currant Tas Lisbiies [Mat| 18 73,12,991 61,02,843 -
Provisions 19 60,73,819 21,73,546 12,83,634
Other Nes-linancial Liabities 20 62,22,851 57,11,427 41,38,692
Eguity
Ege®y Shane Capital 21 48,29,62,000 43,49,62,000 43,49,62,000
Orher Equity 22 50,47,23,834 37,84,51,792 30,67,46,835
TOTAL LLABILITIES ANTF BOUITY 5,73,18,71,237 4,72,06,84, 181 2,89.47 50,484
Saimmary of Sigmificant Acoounting Policies 1
Thi: accoimpany g notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 2to47
In terms of our attached report
{For Delofite Hetking & Sall For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
| Charterad Accuuntants Jagaran Microfin Private Limited
Firm Registration No. 302009E
..._-: f _.,.l""
Abkiin Bﬂnd‘mhhr Sowra Ghosh Jaydeep Ghosh
Fartnes ® - Managng Direcior Whole Time Director & CEQ

DIN: 07475085

Tanusree Ghosh
Cormnpary Secnetany




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(All amount in g, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Notes

Revenus frgm Diperatians
Enterest Income 23
DOividend incamas 24
Total Revenoe fram Operations
Other income 25
Tatal Income
Espenses
Fimance Coitd 26
Impatment on Fnancial Instruminnds 27
Emplayee Banefits Expenses g
Depreciation and Amodtisstion Expenses 29
Dhar Expeiies 30
Total Expenses
Profit before Tax
Tax Expense
(a) Current Tax 11.2
{b) Deferred Tax 11.2
Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive Income:
(a) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss:

(i) Re-measurements of the Defined Benefit Plans

(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss
(b) Items that will be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss:
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year, Net of Tax
Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Earnings per Equity Share (Face Value of X 10/- each)
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (%) 33
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 2to 47

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

1,05,72,80,469 75,04,52,527
51,34,094 97,67,609
1,06,24,14,563 76,02,20,136
11,06.668 20,59,654
1,06,35,21,231 76,22,79,790
57,91,44,628 40,26,58,393
4,53,85,422 3,23,81,240
15,31,76,641 11,20,87,332
48,56,527 43,86,485
9,01,85,432 7,45,14,087
87,27,48,650 62,60,27,537
19,07,72,581 13,62,52,253
5,76,38,648 4,22,95,847
(1,55,08,611) (54,48,987)
4,21,30,037 3,68,46,860
14,86,42,544 9,94,05,393
(19,32,512) 1,28,616

4,86,375 (37,453)
(14,46,137) 91,163
14,71,96,407 "9.94,96.556
3.20 2.32

If terms of aur attached repor

Far Deloitte Hasking & Sells
Chariered Accaumtanis
{Firm H-a*.aiptra:i i M. J0200%E

r}rﬂ‘*f‘.’!

-l'-'-thIH Bandyo ::I
Partrsr

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29 July 2020

Sourav Ghosh
Managing Director
DIN: 08154243

T

Tirtha Pratim Sahu

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Jagaran Microfin Private Limited

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Kolkata

Date: 29 July 2020

Jaydeep Ghosh

Whole Time Director & CEQ

DIN: 07475085

LT
Ay
Tanusree Ghosh
Company Secretary




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

{All amount in ¥, unless otherwise stated)

(4} Equity
As at As ot A &
Particulars i Miarch 31, 2020 Miarch 31, 2013 April 01, 2018
Bslance at the beginning of the year 21 43 43, 63,000 43 4%.67, 000 43,456,000
Chamgss in Equity Share Capital during the year 4_80,00,.000 .
Ealanoe at the end of the year . 48,2%,62,000 43,49, 57,000 43,449,562, 000
[B] Other Equity
e M_ Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Notes -, i ) . Total
Securities Premium Statutory Reserves Retained Earnings
|

As at April 01, 2018 22 4,35,13,000 6,36,59,667 19,95,74,168 30,67,46,835
Profits after Tax for the year 9,94,05,393 9,94,05,393
Dividend Paid - 2,30,52,987 2,30,52,987
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid - 47,38,612 47,38,612
Transferred to Statutory Reserve* 1,98,81,079 1,98,81,079
Oth?r Comprehensive Income transferred from Statement of 91,163 91,163
Profit and Loss - -
As at March 31, 2019 22 4,35,13,000 8,35,40,746 25,13,98,046 37,84,51,792
Profits after Tax for the year 14,86,42,544 14,86,42,544
Issue of Equity Shares during the year 4,20,00,000 4,20,00,000
Dividend Paid 5,21,95,440 5,21,95,440
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid 1,07,28,925 1,07,28,925
Transferred to Statutory Reserve 2,97,28,509 2,97,28,509
Other comprehensive Income transferred from Statement of (14,46,137) (14,46,137)
Profit and Loss
As at March 31, 2020 8,55,13,000 11,32,69,255 30,59,41,579 50,47.23.834

Statutory Reserves in accordance with the provision of Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial

statements. 2
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* The Company has transferred 20% of the Profit after Tax to the Statutory Reserve in accordance with the provisions of Section 45-IC of The Reserve Bank of Indiai
Act, 1934. For the year ended March 31, 2019, the transfer of 20% of the Profit after Tax is after re-measurement adjustments on transition to Ind AS, if any, to the:
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For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstration No. 302009E
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Partney
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Date: 29 July 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Sourav Ghosh Jaydeep Ghosh
Managing Director Whole Time Director & CEO
DIN: 08154243 DIN: 07475085

Tirtha Pratim Sahu
Chief Financial Officer
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Tanusree Ghosh
Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

{All amount in X, unless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS For the year ended March 31,2020 | For the year ended March 31, 2019
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTTVITIES
Prodly Bpdore Tas 19,07,72,581 13,62,52,253
Adjustmesnix o
I Buprecialipn dnd Amoiabon Fapermses 48,56,527 43,86,485
Empameant al Finssial narumants 4,53,85,422 3,23,81,240
Dl sl Ingame (51,34,094) (97,67,609)
miEan nehme on Deposits (4.09.9_5_.?59 (2,25.55.3_7?!
Dpamiisg Prulit bebore Working Copltad Chanpes I _19,4_8,84,680 14,06,96,992
Adjustment Tor changes in Dparmting Axsels & Liabiliies
Agdlippmenty oy fnirsaselidecn e m Opargting Austy
Licutris (78,95,47,035) {1,66,04,73,551)
Trada Eseivalifog 13,33,480 33,80,117
Deher Financ 3l Assgis (15,38,561) (55,63,967)
Oifer Ronefeancial gssem 39,41,257 (36,24,440)
Eﬁﬂmﬂlﬁﬂlﬁﬂﬂ.ﬁlﬁiﬂ i operating Fabibghe
Trage Parpatdny (45,44,007) (4,75,358)
Prosssiinnii 19,67,761 10,18,528
Oty Mon-Bnarcidl Uahiisss 5,11,425 15,72,734
Cash wisd In Cpsratinns — (59.29,91..000] (1,52,34,68,946)
imoceme Tax Paid (5,73,11,847] {3.62.61.402)
Het Cash weed In Operating Actlvlies (65.03.02,847 {1,55.97.30.348)
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Furchase ol Flapd Aueey {53,72,455) (54,88,688)
Furchasa of Meiitsent i Motusd Fund (3,62,26,43,434) (4,12,36,48,528)
Sale of fnveshsant in Mutual Fund 3,61,76,09,841 4,12,36,48,528
Investment in Deposits with Banks & NBFCs (net) (26,17,40,375) (15,96,78,911)
Interest Income on Deposits 4,09,95,756 2,25,55,379
Dividend income 51,34,094 97,67.609
Net cash used in Investing Activities (22.60.16.573} (13.28.44.610]
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend and Dividend Tax Paid (6,29,24,365| (2,77,91,599)
| Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) 22,00,00,000 55,00,00,000
Issue of Subordinated Liabilities 5,00,00,000
Borrowings from Banks and NBFCs 3,02,50,00,000 2,49,00,00,000
Repayment of Borrowings to Banks and NBFCs (2,45,96,62,635) (1,29,38,61,394)
Issue of Share Capital 9.00.00.000 -
Net Cash generated from Financing Activities 86,24,13,000 1.71.83.47.007
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (1,39,06,420) 2,57,72,049
Add: Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 28,12,68,879 25,54,96,830
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of year 26,73,62.450 281268879
Adidbgiongl nores 10 Cash Fiow SEpeant:
I1. Figures in brackets indicate outflows.
2. Cash and bank balances includes cash equivalents (Refer Note 4)
3. Previous year figures have been regrouped/restated wherever necessary
In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Jagaran Microfin Private Limited
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Pariner . Managing Director Whole Time Director & CEQ
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1. Corporate Information

Jagaran Microfinance Private Limited (‘the Company’) is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956. The Company is registered as a non-deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC-ND’) with the
Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) and has got classified as a Non-Banking Financial Company — Micro Finance Institution
(‘NBFC-MFI’) with effect from September 27, 2013.

The Company is engaged primarily in providing micro finance services to women who are enrolled as members and
organized as Joint Liability Groups (‘JLG’).

2. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (""the Act"") per read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time). The financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company had prepared its financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP) notified under
section 133, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016 (hereinafter referred as “Previous GAAP”) and the Master Direction — Non-Banking
Financial Company — Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016 (‘the NBFC Master Directions’) issued by RBI.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 are the first, the Company has prepared in accordance
with Ind AS. The Company has applied Ind AS 101 - First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, for
transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS. An explanation of how transition to Ind AS has affected the previously
reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company is provided in Note No. 42,

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain items which are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods or services. The
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), except when otherwise indicated.

2.1, Presentation of Financial Statements
The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity.

The Company generally reports financial assets and financial liabilities on a gross basis in the balance sheet. They
are offset and reported net when Ind AS specifically permits the same or it has an unconditional legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event. Similarly, the Company offsets
incomes and expenses and reports the same on a net basis when permitted by Ind AS specifically.

2.2.  Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

“The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires Management to make use of estimates and
judgements. In view of the inherent uncertainties and a level of subjectivity involved in measurement of items, it is
possible that the outcomes in the subsequent financial years could differ from those on which the Management’s
estimates are based. Accounting estimates and judgements are used in various line items in the financial
statements for e.g.:

o Business model assessment (Refer Note no. 3.13)

. Effective interest rate (EIR) (Refer Note no. 3.1.1)

o Impairment of financial assets (Refer Note no. 3.14)
o Provisions (Refer Note no. 3.8)

" Contingent liabilities and assets (Refer Note no.3.9)




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

° Provision for tax expenses (Refer note no. 3.11)
o Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note no. 3.6.1)
3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Revenue Recognition
3.1.1 Interest Income

Interest income for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable and are an integral
part of the EIR, but not future credit losses.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other
than credit-impaired assets.

3.1.2 Interest on financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) is recognised in accordance with the
contractual terms of the instrument.

3.1.3 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

3.1.4 The Company recognises gains on fair value change of financial assets measured at FVTPL and realised gains
on derecognition of financial asset measured at FVTPL and FVOCI on net basis.

3.2  Finance Cost
Borrowing cost on financial liabilities are recognised by applying the EIR.
3.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, comprise cash in hand, cash at bank and short-term investments with an original
maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.4  Property, Plant and Equipment ('PPE') Initial Recognition and Measurement:

PPE are stated at cost (including incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the
purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

3.5 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

3.6 Depreciation and amortization
3.6.1 Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is measured using the straight line method as per the useful lives
of the assets estimated by the management. The useful life estimated by the management is as under:




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

_Category of Asset | Useful Life (Years)
Furniture and fittings (10 _
_Office equipments | 05
Vehicles 08 —
Computers (including Servers) 03

3.6.2 Amortization

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The management
has determined its estimate of useful economic life as five years. The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed
at each financial year and adjusted.

3.7 Impairment of Non—financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use.
The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

3.8 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

3.9 Contingent Liabilities and Assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot
be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent assets are not recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, as required by ind AS 37, where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

3.10 Retirement and Other Employee Benefits

3.10.1 Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund and superannuation are defined contribution schemes. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the respective funds. The Company recognises
contribution payable to the respective funds as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service.

3.10.2 Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on
projected unit credit method made at the end of each year. Gains or losses through remeasurements of net benefit
liabilities/ assets are recognlsed wuth correspondmg charge/credlt to the retained earnmgs through other
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3.10.3 Other Employee Benefits

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on
the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the end of each financial year. The Company
presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right
to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay
as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

3.11 Taxes
3.11.1 Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities in accordance with Income tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to
items recognised outside the statement profit or loss is recognised outside the statement profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity).

3.11.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement profit or loss is recognised outside the statement
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

3.12 Earning Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity
shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends
relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.13 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
‘instrument of another entity. _-_-::T—.r\



JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

3.13.1 Financial Assets
3.13.1.1 Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends
on their purpose and characteristics and the management’s intention when acquiring them. All financial assets (not
measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

3.13.1.2 Classification and Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

- Loans at amortised cost

- Loans at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

- Investments in debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
3.13.1.3 Loans at Amortised Costs

Loans are measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

(a) Such loan is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method less impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in interest income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.13.1.4 Investment in Mutual Funds at Amortised Cost

investments in liquid mutual funds are measured at amortised cost and is classified as FVTPL by accounting for any
gain/loss during the period.

3.13.2 Financial Liabilities
3.13.2.1 Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or it is designated as on initial recognition. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments, which are measured at amortised cost.

3.13.2.2 Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

3.13.3 Reclassification of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The company doesn’t reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the
exceptional circumstances in which the company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial
liabilities are never reclassified.

3.13.4 De-recognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
3.13.4.1 De-recognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is de-
ised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Company also de-
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:
- It has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset Or

- It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to receive the
cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to
one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients'), when all of the following three conditions are met:

- The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected equivalent
amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount lent
plus accrued interest at market rates.

- The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients.
- The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without material delay.

In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash
equivalents including interest earned, during the period between the collection date and the date of required
remittance to the eventual recipients. A transfer only qualifies for de-recognition if either:

- The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or

- The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the
asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing
additional restrictions on the transfer. When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards and has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of
the Company's continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Company has retained.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between: (a) the carrying amount (measured at
the date of derecognition) and (b) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new
liability assumed) is recognised in the statement of profit or loss account.

3.13.4.2 De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-
recognition of the original liability and the re-cognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.14 Impairment of Financial Assets
3.14.1 Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Allowance Principles

The Company is recording the allowance for expected credit losses for all loans at amortised cost and FVOCI and
other debt financial assets not held at FVTPL.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected
credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the
allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss (12mECL) as outlined in Note 3.16.2).

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

1L TECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on a collective basis for identified homogenous pool of loans.
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Accordingly, the Company groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12 month ECLs. Stage 1
loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2 or
Stage 3.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the company records an
allowance for the LTECLs.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired. The Company records an allowance for the LTECLs.

For financial assets for which the company has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire
outstanding amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is
considered a (partial) de-recognition of the financial asset.

3.14.2 The Calculation of ECL

The Company calculates ECLs based on a probability-weighted scenarios and historical data to measure the
expected cash shortfalls. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

ECL consists of three key components: Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss given default
(LGD). ECL is calculated by multiplying them. Refer Note 37 for explanation of the relevant terms.

The maximum period for which the credit losses are determined is the expected life of a financial instrument.
The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Company calculates
the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months following the reporting
date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to an EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an
allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated
over the lifetime of the instrument.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognizes the lifetime expected credit losses for these
loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

3.15 Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped pursuing
the recovery. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first
treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent
recoveries are credited to the statement profit and loss account.

3.16 Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using valuation techniques.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either :- In the principal market for the
asset or liability, or- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The Company uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets
and liabilities for which fair value is measured are categorised with fair value hierachy into Level |, Level Il and Level
1l based on level of input.
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3.17 Segment Information

The Company operates in a single business segment i.e. lending to members, having similar risks and returns for
the purpose of Ind AS 108 on 'Operating Segments'. The Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e.
domestic.

3.18 Foreign Currency

3.18.1 All transactions in foreign currency are recognised at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction.

3.18.2 Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the exchange rate prevailing at the close of the period.
3.20 Leases (where the Company is the lessee)

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. The Company
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements in which it is
the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low
value assets. For these leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

3.21 New and Amended Standards adopted by the Company

The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for annual reporting period
commencing from April 01, 2019.

(i) Ind AS 116 Leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of Ind AS 116 ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices
(Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17
Operating Leases - Incentives and Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease). The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases.

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard at
the date of initial application and applied the Standard to its leases on a prospective basis. The adoption of the
standard did not have any impact to the financial statements. The Company also elected to use the recognition
exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do
not contain a purchase option (‘short-term leases’) and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low
value (low-value assets).

(ii) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes — Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The amendment to Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to the determination of
taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty
over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need to determine the
probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the
companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most
likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit/loss, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates. The standard permits two possible methods of transition — i) Full
retrospective approach — Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting
period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,
without using hindsight and ii) Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognised by
adjusting equity on initial application, without adjusting comparatives. The standard became effective from April
01, 2019. The Company has adopted the standard on April 01, 2019. There is no effect on adoption of Ind AS 12
Appendix C in the financial statements.




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(iii) Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Income taxes

The amendment relating to income tax consequences of dividend clarify that an entity shall recognise the income
tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the
entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. The adoption of the standard did not have any
material impact to the financial statements. It is relevant to note that the amendment does not amend situations
where the entity pays a tax on dividend which is effectively a portion of dividends paid to taxation authorities on
behalf of shareholders. Such amount paid or payable to taxation authorities continues to be charged to equity as
part of dividend in accordance with Ind AS 12.

(iv)  Amendment to Ind AS 19 — Employee benefit — plan amendment, curtailment or settlement

The amendments require an entity to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest
for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and to recognise in profit or
loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was
not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling. The adoption of the standard did not have any
material impact to the financial statements.
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L
AsatMarch 31,2018 | Asatéprl01,2018
— -
6,86,324 8,66,880 1,16,21,490
Balances with Banks - In Current Accounts 3 TR LN iiga 01999 3d, 1 75 ekl |
: 2673624459 2.12.68.872 255496330
L3 Radarrmn s Dbk
articulars A [_AsatMarch 31,2019 |
Balances with Banks - In Fixed Deposit Accounts® 55,99,24,920 33,64,54,499 22,90,28,421
|Including accrued interest for fixed deposits)
55,99,24,920 33.64.54.499 22.90.28.421

* Fixed Deposits are under lien against borrowings availed by the Company {except Fixed Deposits not under lien as at March 31, 2020 : ® 12,23,32,758, March 31, 2019 : T Nil, April 01, 2018 : T NII}

B Receivables

inte Beaie
Particulars

| {a) Unsecured Considered Good
Less: Allowance for impairment loss allowance

_AsatMarch31 2020 | Asat March 31,2019 | As at April 01, 2018
1,15,302 14,48,782 48,28,899

1,15.302 14.48.782 4828899
b} Credit Impaired 94,725
Less: Allowance for Impairment Loss Allowance - B TIS
1,15,302 | 14.48,782 48,28.899 |
*Trade Receivables includes dues in respect of C i on Busi Corr dance (BC} Income
Wiuk, wemrgg tharedroer 16 o ke As at March
Particulars Gross Carrying Amount |  Allowance for Credit Net Carrying Amount
— Loss
Dverdue till Three Months 1,15,302 1,15,302
Dverdue between Three to Six Months =
Dverdue between Six Months to One year
More than 1 year overdue
1,15.302 | = 1.15.302
L M ]
|I=|'-|h-1 Gitias Dirvyag el | Adldwisnom for Crodi | By Carrylag Arsmam
Lo |
“esrdda# till Three Months 1d.40,T83 ddARTa
il s between Three to Six Months
Civi=ils between Six Months to One year A TER (Lo
Mg Was 1y ceerie | =
(EETENT] [, 723} L4 8, T |
As at April 01. 2018
Particulars Gross Carrying Amount | Allowance for Credit Net Carrylng Amount
Loss
Overdue till Three Months 48,28,899 48,28,899
Overdue between Three to Six Months
Overdue between Six Months to One year -
More than 1 year overdue -
48.28.899 - 4828899 |
T laaas
[P_runm B | Auw M Fi, B30 | AseiMarch 5L 2023 | kiasApelDl
HEsgiueed, Kt dmeribed Cost
[ Tgitd L 47840 KL BED B 5 D0 SN0 | A0 ER TR
Tt fes) 4,730 51,300 130N LMETLETE
LEw! rrpaareret] Lo Slosen # 5L ET ALY .97 AT BN ANEEran |
Tonl jpst) 5550, TAATT 1AL 03 1704 (e R
il b
P ATH A5 61880 | 1,95 0w B4 2 130 60,77 34
L . Frpme-reeT] Low Afoware s WET AL LIRS RN R
Terimd Bet] FL WL RFE T 229 T8I0 550

Note 1: The contractual amount outstanding on Financial Assets that were written off during the reporting period and are still subject to enforcement activity as on March 31, 2020 is ® 60,05,593 {Previous year ®

1,71,67,331)
Note 2: The change in Expected Credit Loss Allowance of the portfolio was driven by an change in the size of the portfolio and b age buckets as a result of increase or decrease in credit risk of the the
receivables.
L] il
i
P Ao Marn B, 2030 | A8 sk Aderol Ki BOER | d o el 0L DOEER
| Irvmarreiti in Mutual Fund (Wholly In India) - At Fair Value through Profit and Loss RELA A |
" . + o . B ——
I:-}I'ill.?ul-l units of HDFC Liquid Fund as on March AL MD2E Mewrmh 31, 2019 : R Nil, April 1. 2018 : AL} I B = I =
b
S Whsrghi 1, 0N A5 0 Paih 1, s _l-w“ﬂdm___m
e, T (REER H]
ERBETTATG ELE R AR 2,31,54. 4
AR FHE R LT ] L
1,00, 734 45,500 1,73 |
ANy ity 4] BELIIEN
sl
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{All amount in &, unless otherwise stated)

10

ELL

Cissegal i Saiats )

Farticulars As at March 31_‘_2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at Aorll 01. 2018
Advance Income Tax [net of Income tax provision of X 9,26,67,420 (March 31, 2019 : X 5,03,71,573, April 1, 2018: % 5,03,71,573)] 53,20,278 44,36,931 43,68,533
53,220,278 44.36.931 43.68.533

Drforyvs Taew Syvpta )
Paticatin

Tax Effect on items constituting Deferred Tax Asset:
Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Provision for Impairment Loss Allowance

Disallowance under Section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961
Total Deferred Tax Assets

Tax Effect on items constituting Deferred Tax Uability:
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

Total Deferred Tax Uabllities

thmmhg-’“mulm

As at March 31. 2020

As at March 31. 2019

As at Aorll 01. 2018

Particulars As at Statement of Profit or Other As at
April 01, 2019 Loss Comprehensive March 31, 2020
4 TR —
Deferred Tax Assets for Deductible Temporary Differences on: |
Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 1,00,67,608 { 30,74,165 1,31,41,773
Provision for Impairment Loss Allowance 79,75,170 1,26,07,550 . 2,05,82,720
Disallowance under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 P L 4497 an3 A RET| 2093 43
fotal 2,01,56,983 1,61,74,618 (4,86,3751 3,68,17,976
IDeferred Tax Uabillties for Taxable Temporary Differences on:
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 3,51,568 1,90,954
Financial Liabllitles at Amortised Cost {1017 875 16341 14}
II't)tal (84,84,353|: (6,66,0071 - (91,50,360)i
1 |
Deforred Tax Acsot (Nat) 1 1,16,72,630 | 1,55.08,611 (4.86.375) 2.76.67.616 |
Movement In Cafwrred Tax Aatais dar yeor saced barck B, SHid X
Particulars | As at Statement of Profit or Other | As at
April 01, 2018 Loss Comprehensive March 31, 2019
Income
Deferred Tax Assets for Deductible Temporary Differences on:
Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 62,58,579 38,09,029 1,00,67,608
Provision for Impairment Loss Allowance 51,55,528 28,19,642 79,75,170
Disallowance under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 1£ag n71 4 53,587 (37 453) 21.14,205
Total 1,3;,12,178 70,82,258 (37,453| 2,01,56,983
Deferred Tax Uabilities for Taxable Temporary Differences on:
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets (6,30,974) 4,70,360 (1,60,614)
Financial Liabllities at Amortised Cost 100 12103 631| {83 23739}
Total (68,51,082) (16,33,27] (84,84,353)
_[_)if_err_gg Tax Asset (Nath 62.61,006 5448087 l}7|45£| 1.16.72.630

Note:

1,31,41,773 1,00,67,608 62,58,579

2,05,82,720 79,75,170 51,55,528

3083083 wges |  isssen
aeA79%6 | 2mseem | aasam

{1,60,614 {6,30,974|

(83.23.739) (62,20 108}

')

2 ipasessal (651,082
'] e |
1.16;72.630 62.61.096

Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities have been offset wherever the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off Current Tax Assets against Current Tax Liabilities and where the Deferred Tax Assets and
Deferred Tax Liabilities relate to Income Taxes levied by the same taxation authority

Current Tax and Deferred Tax
Laitu RN THE:
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 = As at March 31, 2019
Current Tax 5,76,38,648 4,22,95,847
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) (1,55,08,611}! {54 AR Q8T
4,21,30,037 | 3.68.46.860
'\'.!"rh Iroama
B HuEE Anariiugh 33, 3800 | Ag et Madck B pms |
ﬁuﬁl:.-'\.mﬁﬁu'llq-n E od B3 1Th ||'|,-'.|;f-_l-|‘|-
- 484,170 i
Aaronzilrtion of figok Paafh s Tao fapie
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 | As at March 31, 2019
Profit before Tax 19,07,72,581 13,62,52,253
Income Tax using the Company's Domestic Tax Rate* 4,79,94,566 3,96,76,656
Effect of Income Exempt from Tax/ Items Not Deductible (20,73,781) {23,29,490)
Effect of Change in Substantially Enacted Tax Rate {37 90 748 15,00 1BE]
4.21.30.037 3.68.46.860

*The Tax Rate used for 2019-2020 and 2018-2019 reconciliations above comprises of Corporate Tax Eafw ! 15% wnd #4% respectively, applicable Surcharge and Cess, payable by corporate entities in india on taxable profits

under the Income Tax Act, 1961
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2020

(All amount in T, unless otherwise stated)

12 Property, Plant and Equipment

Owned Assets

Particulars Computer Furniture and Fixtures Office Equipment Vehicles Total
| Gross Block

Balance as at April 01, 2018 41,12,377 29,29,428 32,23,798 5,67,739 1,08.33,342

Additions 18,28,610 8,99,298 3.90.526 8,78,904 39,97,338

Disposal - | =

Balance as at March 31, 2019 59.40,987 38.28,726 36,14,324 14,46,643 1,48,30,680

Additions 16,14,228 6.64.417 12,82,132 35.60,777
Disposal - il | -
| Balance as at March 31. 2020 75,55.215 44,93,143 48,96,456  14,46,643 1,83,91,457
1 —
\Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment |

Balance as at April 01, 2018 - | v - -

Charge for the vear 21,25,697 4,71,069 | 9,46,271 1,15,771 36,58,808

Crapirtal) A s navdinis | - - |

Balance as at March 31, 2019 —— 21,25_,69f | 4,71,069 9.46,271 1,15,771 36,58,808

Charge for the vear 20,52,513 4.99.281 | 9.71.301 1.90.222 37.13317

Cosipir il Adjed D | - -

Balance as at March 31, 2020 41.78,210 9,70.350 19,17,572 3,05,993 73.72,125
et Block = .

Balance as at April 01. 2018 41,12,377 29,29,428 32,23,798 5,67,739 1.08.33,342
|Balance as at March 31, 2019 38,15,290 33,57,657 26,68.053 13,30,872 1,11,71,872
LB_aIance as at March 31, 2020 33,77.005 35,22,793 29,78,884 11,40,650 1,10,19,332

13 Other Intangible Assets
Owned Assets
|_Pa rticulars Computer Software Total

iGross Block |

Balance as at April 01, 2018 19,64,367 19,64,367
Additions 14,91,350 14,91,350
Disposal .

Balance as at March 31, 2019 34.55.717 34,55,717
Additions 18.11.678 18,11,678

Disposal .

Balance as at March 31, 2020 52,67,395 52,67,395
.'dccumulqted Depreciation and Impairment
Balance as at April 01, 2018 - g
Charge for the year 7.27.677 7.27.677
Disposal/Adjustments —

Balance as at March 31, 2019 7,27,677 7.27.677
Charge for the year 11.43,210 11,43,210

Disposal/Adjustments - .

Balance as at March 31, 2020 18,70,887 18,70,887

Net Block
Balance as at April 01, 2018 19,64,367 19,64,367
‘Balance as at March 31, 2019 27,28,040 27.28.040

Balance as at March 31, 2020 33,96.508 33.96,508

14 Other Non-Financial Assets )

Particulars As at March 31,2020 | As at March 31, 2019 As at April 01, 2018

Advance to Employees 9,64,039 { 4,46,876 1,03,092

Security Deposit - 46,50,400

Prepaid Expenses 8,37,659 10,18,404 9,43,634

Advance to Insurance Companies 7,57,402 2,61,656 49,585

Other Advances 45 000 | 1,68,021 18.24 606

Total 26,04,100 65,45,357 25,20.917 |




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2020
{All amount in X, unless otherwise stated)

15 Payables
[1] Trade Pagaibles
Iiarticulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 01, 2018
Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
- Employee Payables 72,84,095 1,37,14,932 1,10,91,183
- Others* 95,69,314 76,82.484 1,07,81,591
1,68,53,409 2,13,97,a16 2,18,72,774
* Includes Insurance Payable for X 58,71,655/- (March 31, 2019 : X 41,87,390/-, April 01, 2018: X 68,83,456/-)
16 Debt Securities
[Particulars | Asat March 31,2020 | As at March 31, 2019 As at April 01, 2018
At Amortised Cost
Non Convertible Debentures - Listed (Secured)* 80,70,31,446 57,91,23,752 -
80,70,31,346 57,91,23,752 =}
Debt Securities in India 80,70,31,446 57,91,23,752
Debt Securities outside India =
80,70,31,446 57,91,23,752

* Debentures are secured against hypothecation of Book Debts of the Company.

* During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has raised X 2,200 lakhs (FY 2018-2019: X 5,500 lakhs; FY 2017-2018: X Nil) through private issue of secured, listed Non-
Convertible Debentures which are secured against hypothecation of Book Debts of the Company. The Debentures has tenure of 60 months and carries rate of interest at 13.000%
and are redeemable at par in single instalment. The debentures issued during the previous year have a tenure of 48 months carries interest rate of 13.0465%. These debentures
further contains both put and call option exercisable on or after twenty four months from the date of the issue.

17.1 ___B;u'rmwrp_l!-uﬂrur than Debt Securities)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 01, 2018 |
| Term loans (Secured)
|At Amortised Cost
From Banks 1,54,65,62,997 1,26,55,81,794 92,53,40,174
From Non banking Financial Companies 2,28,22,44,319 1,83,12,21,020 1,20,04,06,375
Collateralised Borrowings # 2,13,41,959 19,59,58,591 =]
Total 3,85,01,49,275 3,29,27,61,405 2,12,57,46,549
Borrowings in India”* 3,85,01,49,275 3,29,27,61,405 2,12,57,46,549
Borrowings outside India L =
| ; 3,85,01,49,275 3,29,27,61,405 2,12,57,46,549

# This represent amount received against assignment of Business Correspondence {BC) portfoli;, which does not qualify for de-recognition under Ind AS 109.

* The loans are fully secured against hypothecation of Book Debts (refer note 17A).
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2020
(All amount in R, unless otherwise stated)

17.2  Subordinated Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31. 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 01, 2018

Unsecured

Subordinated Debt (Tier 1l Capital)}* 5,00.41,802 =" _
5,00,41,802 = -

Subordinated Liabilities in India 5,00,41,802 -

Subordinated Liabilities outside India - -
5.00.41,802 -

17.00% and are repayable in two equal instalments at end of 5.5 years and 6 years from the date of disbursement.

*During the year ended 31 March 2020, the company has raised X 500 lakhs (Previous Years ® Nil) as Subordinated Debt having a tenure of 72 months and carries rate of interest at

18 Current Tax Liabilities |Met) . -
| Particulars As at March 31,2020 | As at March 31, 2019 . AsatApril 01, 2018
Provision for Income Tax [Net of Advance Tax of ® 5,03,25,658 (March 31, 2019 : ® 4,31,79,194, April 73,12,991 61,02,843
1, 2018: % Nil))
73.12.991 61,02,843 | ]
19 Prevlsions —
Particulars As at March 31. 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 01, 2018
Provision for Compensated Absence 35,73,259 20,29,926 12,41,821
Provision for Gratuity (refer note 36) 25.00.560 1,43,620 41,813 |
[ 60,73,819 21,73,546 12.83.634
20 Other Non-financial Liabllities
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 01, 2018
Statutory Dues Payable 62.22.851 57.11.427 _41,38,692
62.22.851 57,11,427 41,38,692 |
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2020

{All amount in X, unless otherwise stated)

23

24

25

Interest Income

For the year ended For the year ended |
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
On Financlal Assets measured at Amortised Cost
Interest Income on Loans 1,01,62,84,713 72,78,97,150
Interest Income on Deposits 4,09,95,756 2,25,55,377
1,05,72,80,469 75,04,52,527
Dividend Income
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Dividend Income 51,34,094 97,67,609
51,34,094 97,67,609
Other Income
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
|E"5‘:E"3-‘IEWEI Income® 11,06,668 r20,59,654
11,06,668 20,59,654

* Includes bad debt recovery for FY 2019-20: X 11,06,072/- (Previous Year: X 6,38,685/-) and Liabilty written Back for FY 2019-20: % 596/, (Previous Year: X

13,83,982/-).

26 Finance Costs

27

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Interest on Borrowings 48,51,39,439 34,91,33,767
Interest on Debt Securities 8,44,37,805 5,17,78,354
Interest on Subordinated Liabilities 42,79,149
Other Interest Expense 52,88,235 17,46,272 |
[ 57,91,44,628 40,26,58,393 |
Impairment on Financial Instruments
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
On Financial instruments measured at Amortised Cost
Loans 4,53,85,422 3,22,86,515
Trade Receivables 94,725
4,53,85,422 3,23,81,240
Emiplosyes Benefits Expenies
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Salaries and Wages 13,56,25,150 9,95,70,094
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 1,33,58,105 94,35,918
Staff Welfare Expenses 41,93.386 | 3081320
15,31,76,641 | 11,20,87,332




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2020
{All amount in X, unless otherwise stated)

29

Deprecistion and Amortisation Expenses

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 37,13,317 36,58,808
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 11,43,210 7,27,677
48,56,527 43,86,485
Other Expenies
For the year ended Far the yaar ended
Particularn March 31, 2020 March 31, 2010
Electricity Charges 27,88,024 29,63,460
Rent (Refer Note 35) 3,08,79,283 2,45,35,570
Repairs & Maintenance 11,80,081 14,04,877
software Maiatenance 8,92,583 11,47,255
Director Sitting Fees 23,70,750 23,76,200
Fringing & Statlomary 35,75,093 24,19,542
Telnphnne Expanses 36,93,436 27,65,076
Traveding Expenses 1,60,96,704 84,95,660
MamDarship Fags 13,79,774 10,72,579
Prafessional Fees 48,48,102 47,18,057
“Smatutory Auditor's Remuneration
- For Statutory Audit 17,00,000 17,00,000
- For Tax Audit 2,00,000 2,00,000
- For Certification Fees 3,00,000 2,00,000
- For Out of Pocket Expenses 50,816
Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') Expenses (refer note 34) 62,78,946 16,35,916
Cansdlianty Charges 56,62,061 81,84,620
Training Expenss; 13,85,072 12,03,011
Rates & Tawes 10,37,886 2,72,673
Intermal Auce Faay 17,48,585 14,13,580
Secunty B Contractual Mampereess Expenses 4,79,909 5,99,325
Insurance Premium Paid 14,27,468 13,31,321
Mistelnnsous Eepenass Z2.10.455 50,75,365 |
G, 00, &5 432 7,45,14,067




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
(All amount in X, unless otherwise stated)

31: Additional Information to the Financial Statements

31.1: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 01, 2018
Contingent Liabilities NIL NiL NiL
Commitments =

Estimated Amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account and not NiL NIL NiL

provided for :

31.2: Disclosures Required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount due to the Micro and Small Enterprise as defined in the "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of the information available with the Company. The disclosure relating to the Micro and Small Enterprise as at

March 31, 2020 are as under:

Description

Year ended March 31,
2020

a. The Principal Amount remaining unpaid to Supplier as at end of the vear

Year ended March 31,
2019

Year ended April 01,
2018

b. Interest Due as on remaining unpaid to Supplier as at the end of the year

¢. Amount of Interest Due and Payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding
Interest specified under the Act

d. Amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at end of the vear

e The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding}
year until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small|
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under sectiori|
23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

31.3: Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares

On July 29, 2020, the Board of Directors of the Company have proposed a final dividend of ® 0.80/- per share in respect of the year ending March 31, 2020 subject to the
approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. If approved, the dividend would result in cash outflow of X 3,86,36,960/-.




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
(All amount in X, unless otherwise stated)

32: List of Related Parties and Helaticmship

Name

Relationship

GTFS Multi Services Limited

Holding Company

Ms. Abira Majumder

Ms. Aatreyee Majumder

Mr. Adipta Majumder

Individual having significant influence
Key Management Personnel (from 08-03-2019) - Whole Time Director (from 14-11
tivo of Individuals having significant influence

_Individual having significant influence.

‘Mr. Bhabesh Majumder
Mrs. Sona Majumder

i) '=Rlelative of Individuals having significant influence.

‘Relative of Individuals having significant influence.

Mr. Sourav Ghosh

Key Management Personnel (from 08-03-2019) - Managing Director {from 17-01-
2020) and Relative of Individuals having significant influence.

Mr. Indr‘a'j‘i.t Gupta

Kev Management Personnel - Chairman, Executive Director (till 16-01-2020)

Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh

Transaction with Related Parties

;l(gLManagement Personnel - Whole Time Director and CEO (from 14-11-2019)

K [NIanaEement Individual and Relatives
Particulars Holding Company of Individuals having
Personal ..
Significant Influence
Dividend Paid 4,17,78,720 - 77,52,600
- {1.84,52,269] (-) (34,18,712)
Rent and Maintenance Charges 1,99.25.679 - =
{1.86,11,066) i il
Security Deposit for Rent i i 2
(69,75,600) 1 )
Advance Rent Paid - = -
(69,75,600) [ [l
Advance Rent Adjusted against Rent Paid 43,59,750 - =
(26.15,850) (-) 1=l
Rent and Maintenance Charges (paid to Mr. Bhabesh Majumder) - - 2,83,200
{-) i (2,83,200)
Share Capital including Premium {Issued to Ms. Abira Majumder) - - 3,75,99,375
— () L) Ll
Share Capital including Premium {Issued to Ms. Aatreyee Majumder) . 2,61,52,500
(-} (-) 1=}
Share Capital including Premium (Issued to Mr. Adipta Majumder) . - _2.62,48,125
-1 (-) ()
Remuneration of Mr. Indrajit Gupta . 25,99,193 *
O (31,20,000) Il
Remuneration of Mr. Jayanta Majumder - - =
L (13.81.320] [=1
Remuneration of Mr. Sourav Ghosh s 26.02,896 -]
(-} (1,66,917) )
Remuneration of Ms. Aatreyee Majumder - 24,85,427 -
() (1,45,239) ()
Remuneration of Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh = 26.71,260 | -
() (14,37,530) | )

# previous year's numbers are disclosed in bracket




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
(All amount in X, unless otherwise stated)

32: List of Related Parties and Relationship (Continued)
Balance Dwitstanding Fayabie as at March 31, 2020

Key Man ok Individual and Relatives
Farticulars Halding Company ‘ of Individuals having
| Personsl
| Significant mlluance
{Rert snd Mainterance Charges (Bsfance af 31 March 31, 2000] - -
Rart and Maintenance Charges (Balance as at March 31, 2019) {-] i} 1=
Rent and Maintenance Charges (Balance as at Al (11, J014] __f1.B0.5404 i=} -
Remuneration of Mr. Indrajit Gupta (Balance as at March 1, 20120 =
Remuneration of Mr. Indrajit Gupta (Balance as at March 3-i, 2154 (D] @.Iﬁlﬂ} |1
Remuneration of Mr. Indrajit Gupta (Balance as at April 01, 2015] 3, 8,515} I-
Remuneration of Mr. Sourav Ghosh-;ﬁ:l.a'-:tnnrr-.lardr 31, 20244 " -
Remuneration of Mr. Sourav Ghosh (Balance as at March 31, 20111} I1 1,148,050} -}
Remuneration of Mr. Sourav Ghosh (Balance as at April (74, 2FLE) 1] =) [ |
| Femuneriiion of Ms. Aatrevee Maijumder (Balance as at March 31. G| . o il
Epmuneration of Ms. Aatreyee Majumder (Balance as at March 31, 2019} |=| 11,25 529§ [}
Famuramaticn of Ms. Aatreyee Majumder (Balance as at April 01, #11#} Il 1 (]
| Equity Share Capital of GTFS Multi Services Private Limited 34,81, 56,000 =
Eulty Share Capital of GTFS Multi Services Private Limited |34, B8, 56,000] |- o4
| F4ully Share Capital of GTFS Multi Services Private Limited A4, 1,56 000} -l [u]
| Equity Share Capital of Ms. Aatreyee Majumder {Balance as at March 11, 2021 - .59.40,000 s
Equity Share Capital of Ms. Aatrevee Majumder (Balance as at March 31, 2015} -} {1 000 KK i
Fruity Share Capital of Ms. Aatreyee Majumder (Balance as at April 01, 2018] [ (1,60,01 000| ] -1
Equity Share Capital of Mr. Abira Majumder (Balance as at March 31, #1:]| - . 3,65,54,0040
{Equity Share Capital of Mr. Abira Majumder (Balance as at March 31, 24114} ] I 11 60,0100 |
{Equiry Share Capital of Mr. Abira Majumder (Balance as at April 01, 2018} {3 [-} 11,560,010 0004
Equity Share Capital of Mr. Adipta Majumder (Bafance as at March i1, 2020} - : 1,00, 0, 0040
Eruity Share Capital of Mr. Adipta Majumder (Balance as at March i1, 2014} (8] [-§ |1, B, 01 00
Eiguetty Share Capital of Mr. Adipta Majumder (Balance as at April 01, 201F) -1 [+ |1, B0 0L, BO0Y
Equity Share Capital af M, Sons Magumdar - . __1,50,0, 000
[Esiiey Share Capital of M. Sana Mammider {:] [, 840, o, 000
Eryuity Shars Capital of . Sana Majumder - 11,60, 01, 000
Remuneration of Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh (Balance as at March 31, 20120 " - -
Remuneration of Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh (Balance as at March 31, 2015} I {1.75,455¢ byl
Remuneration of Mr. lEydeep Shash |Bi|i|'l-:u s at April 01, J0EE] I |- 4]
Sacursy Depaosit for Rent (Balance as at March 31, 3010 H..H{g-__ﬂ_ﬂ H -
Securay Daposit for Rent (Balance as at March 31, 2011] (5, 75,600] | -l LI
Lacury Depralt for Ree |Balance as af April 01, 3018} (4 50,000] Il i1
aaance Rent (Balance as at March 31, 20211} - . J
Ahvance Rent |Balanoe as at March 31, 3019} i#3,59,750| -] v
fdeance fent |Balence ag &1 gl D1, 2048) i T {]

# previous year's numbers are disclosed in bracket

33: Earnings Per Share

Particulars For the year ended March |For the year ended March
31, 2020 31, 2019 .

Profit for the year available to Equity Shareholders (X) 14,71,96,407 9,94,96,556

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 4,59,88,003 4,29,49,481

Nominal Value per Equity Share (X.} 10 10

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (%) 3.20 2.32

34 : Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenditure

In accordance to Section 135 of Companies Act 2013, the Company has incurred X 62,78,946 (Previous year: X 16,35,916 ) as CSR expenditure. Under the CSR activities, the
Company has arranged free skill development training for women, free medical camp, free primary school training, financial literacy programme, merit scholarship, free
coaching center and other social security programmes. Out of the above expenditure, X 32,36,191 (Previous year: Nil) has been donated by the Company to the Prime
Minister's National Relief Fund {PMNRF) on account of the unspent balances for the previous years.

a) Gross Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 2019-20: X 24,08,728, P.Y. 2018-19: X 18,12,156.

b Amosant spent durning The ylar o

Particulars In Cash Yet to be Paid in Cash Total
QLConstruaion/Acquisition of any Asset - -
(i) On purposes other than (I) above 62,78,946 - 62,78,946

35 : Operating Lease - As a Lessee

The Company has taken certain office premises under cancellable operating lease arrangements which generally, range between 11 months to 1 year, and are usually
renewable by mutual agreement. For the year ended 31st March, 2020, lease payments charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss with respect to such leasing
arrangements aggregate to X 3,08,79,283 (Previous Year: X 2,45,35,570). The Company has availed the benefit of short term lease exemption under Ind AS 116 and

charged off the lease payments charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
(All amount in X, unless otherwise stated)

36. Defined Benefit Plan

The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. The benefit payable is calculated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and the benefit vests upon
completion of five years of continuous service and once vested it is payable to employees on retirement or on termination of employment. In case of death while in service, the
gratuity is payable irrespective of vesting. The Company makes annual contribution to the group gratuity scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

36.1 Reconciliation of Net Defined Benefit Liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit liability/assets and its components:

Particulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019 | April 01, 2018
Reconciliation of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
Dbligation at the beginning of the year 40,00,064 28,48,908 19,91,809
Current Service Cost 22,57,540 12,86,943 8.69.917
Interest Cost 2,40,658 2,14,372 1,51,854
Past Service Cost E — :
Actuarial {gains)/ losses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
- Changes in Experience Adjustments 2,88.956 (1,69,045) (24,140
[- Changes in Financial Assumptions 15,80,157 {36,985) {1,11.455
IBeneﬁts Settled 8,16,299 1,44,129 29,077
Dbligation at the end of the year 75.51.076 40,00,064 28,48,908
!@Knciliation of Present Value of Plan Assets |
{Plan Assets at the beginning of the year, at Fair Value 38,56,444 | 28,07,095 12,09,916
Interest Income on Plan Assets 2,58,382 2.16.,708 92,922
Re-measurement- Actuarial Gain -
Return on Plan Assets (63,399] (77,414] (10,6371
Employer Contributions 18,15.388 10,54,184 15,43,971
Benefits Settled 8,16,299 1,44,129 29,077
Plan Assets at the end of the vear, at Fair Value 50,50,516 38,56,444 28,07,095
|Net Defined Benefit Liability 25,00,560 1,43,620 41,813
3£, Expense Becognised in Prafit or Loss
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Current Service Cost 22,57,540 12,86 943
Interest Cost (17,723} (2,335_::
Net Gratuity Cost 22,39,817 12,84,608
36.3 Income Hecognised in Profit or Loss
. Year ended Year ended
R March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Interest Income
Net Gratulty Income -
36.4 Re-maasuromant Recognised in Oiiver Comprehemive Iscnme
particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Re-measurement of the Net Defined Benefit Liability
- Changes in Experience Adjustments 15.80.157 {36,985)
- Changes in Financial Assumptions 2,88,95€6 (1,69,045)
Re-measurement of the Net Defined Benefit Asset
Return on Plan Assets {greater)/ less than discount rate (63,399} (77,414
Total Actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI 19,32,51% (1,28,616
36.5 Plan Assets
Particulars March 31, 2020 | March 31. 2019 | April 01, 2018
Funds managed by Insurer 100% 100% 100%
36.6 Defined Benefit ‘:‘h"la.‘.‘!_",: Actuarial &ssurmptinns
Particulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019 | April 01, 2018
Discount Rate 6.70% 7.72% 7.68%
Expected Return on Plan Asset 6.70% 7.72% 7.72%
Rate of Compensation Increase (Salary Inflation) 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Early Retirement & Disablement {All Causes Combined) 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
(All amount in X, unless otherwise stated)

36.7 Sensitivity Analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit

obligation by the amounts shown below:

Particulars March 31, 2020

Increase % Decrease %
Discount Rate (+/- 100 basis points) 67,21,364 -10.99%. 85,04,248 12.62%
Future Salary Growth {+/- 100 basis points) 85.02,285 12.60%. 67.15,927 -11.06%
Attrition Rate (+/- 100 basis points) 75,372,711 -0.18%: 75.64.517 0 1%
Mortality Rate (+/- 100 basis points) 75.53,945 0.04%| 75,48,207 -0.04%L.

March 31, 2019

Increase % Decrease %
Discount Rate (+/- 100 basis points) 35,70.217 -10.75% 44,92,912 12.32%
Future Salary Growth {+/- 100 basis points) 44,96,712 12.42% 35,63,737 -10.91%
Attrition Rate (+/- 100 basis points) 39,94,224 -0.15% 40,05,944 0.15%:
Mortality Rate (+/- 100 basis points) 40,05,264 0.13% 39,94.824 -0.13%

April 01, 2018
Increase % Decrease %
| Discount Rate (+/- 100 basis points) 23.40.948 -10.77% 29,47.153 12.34%]
Future Salary Growth (+/- 100 basis points) 29,49,566 12.43% 23,36,750 -10.93%.
Attrition Rate (+/- 100 basis points) 26.17.592 -0.22% 26,29,372 0.23%
Mortality Rate (+/- 100 basis points) 26,26,827 0.13% 26,20,085 -0.13%
36.8 Table m Cash Flow Information
Particulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019 | April 01, 2018
Next Year Liability (Exoected) 1.07.13.681 59.04.727 39.07.542 |
Minimum Funding Reguirements 53,70,974 17,81,182 9,04,152
Company's Discretion - -
36.9 Table Shorwieg Malwdity ﬁrI-ItE'rl af the Defined Benefit Plan
Particulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019 | April 01, 2018

Year 1 44,720 29£9 2,44,029
Year 2 99,328 32,149 20,265
fear 3 54,138 73,922 22,162
Year 4 58,655 38.751 43.465
Year 5 and above 4,47,57,619 3,10,34,227 2,00,09,515
Total Undiscounted Pavments related to Past Service 4.50.14.460 3.12.08.548 2.03.39.436
Less Discount For Interest 3,74,63,384 2,72,08,484 1,74,90,527
Proiected Benefit Obligation 75,51,076 40,00,064 28.48.909

36.10 The company has contributed X 71,23,749 (Previous year: X 46,19,254) to Defined Contribution Cchemes.




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
(All amount in X, unless otherwise stated)

37: Risk Management and Impairment Allowance

Risk is an integral part of the Company’s business and sound risk management is critical to the success. As a financial intermediary, the Company is exposed to risks that are particular to
its lending and the environment within which it operates and primarily includes credit, liquidity and market risks. The Company has a risk management policy which covers risks
associated with the financial assets and liabilities. The risk management policy is approved by the Risk Management Committee and the Board of Directors.

The Company has identified and implemented comprehensive policies and procedures to assess, monitor and manage risk through- out the Company. The risk management process is
continuously reviewed, improved and adapted in the context of changing risk scenario and the agility of the risk management process is monitored and reviewed for its appropriateness
in the changing risk landscape. The process of continuous evaluation of risks includes taking stock of the risk landscape on an event-driven basis.

The Company has an elaborate process for risk management. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a
continuing basis.

37.1 Credit Risk

The Company is a rural focused NBFC-MFI with a geographically diversified presence in India and offer income generation loans under the joint liability group model, predominantly to
women from low-income households in Rural Areas. Further, as we focus on providing micro-loans in Rural Areas, our results of operations are affected by the performance and the
future growth potential of microfinance in rural India. Our clients typically have limited sources of income, savings and credit histories and our loans are typically provided free of
collateral. Such clients generally do not have a high level of financial resilience, and, as a result, they can be adversely affected by declining economic conditions and natural calamities.
In addition, we rely on non-traditional guarantee mechanisms rather than tangible assets as collateral, which may not be effective in recovering the value of our loans.

In order to mitigate the impact of credit risk in the future profitability, the Company creates impairment loss allowance basis the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the outstanding
loans as at balance sheet date.
The below discussion describes the Company’s approach for assessing impairment as stated in note 3.14 of the significant accounting policies.

A) Probabllity of Default (PD)

The Company determines PD on a collective basis. The Company uses historical information of its loan portfolio to estimate PD.

In determining the above PD’s, an effort is made to eliminate outliers for a particular observation period which are not likely to happen in future. Accordingly, the Company determines
PD depending upon the underlying classification of asset (i.e. Stage | or Stage Il).

B) Exposure at Default (EAD)
The outstanding balances as at the reporting date is considered as EAD by the Company.

C) Loss Given Default

The Company determines its expectation of lifetime loss by estimating recoveries towards its entire loan portfolio through analysis of historical information. The Company determines its
recovery rates by analysing the recovery trends over different periods of time after a loan has defaulted. Based on its analysis of historical trends, the Company has assessed that
significant recoveries happen in the year in which default has occurred. Accordingly, it believes no significant difference arise from discounting such recoveries for determining ultimate
loss rates.

37.2 Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market factor. Such changes in the values of financial
instruments may result from changes in the interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes. The Company is exposed to two types of market risks as follows:

37.2a Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

We are subject to interest rate risk, principally because we lend to clients at fixed interest rates and for periods that may differ from our funding sources, while our borrowings are at
both fixed and variable interest rates for different periods. We assess and manage our interest rate risk by managing our assets and liabilities. Our Asset Liability Management
Committee evaluates asset liability management, and ensures that all significant mismatches, if any, are being managed appropriately.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the interest rates on the portion of borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the

i bedine 1as b affect=d through the mpect on Baaksg rake borrowings, as follows
Finance Cost | As at March 31, 2020

.50 % Increase 1.92 Crore

.50 % Decrease 1.92 Crore

37.2b Price Risk

The Company’s exposure to price risk is not material and it is primarily on account of investment of temporary treasury surplus in the highly liquid debt funds for very short durations.
The Company has a board approved policy of investing its surplus funds in highly rated debt mutual funds and other instruments having insignificant price risk, not being equity funds/
risk bearing instruments.

37.3 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company may not meet its financial obligations. Liquidity risk arises due to the unavailability of adequate funds at an appropriate cost or tenure.
The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company consistently generates
sufficient cash flows from operating and financing activities to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due. Our resource mobilization team sources funds from multiple
sources, including from banks, financial institutions and capital markets to maintain a healthy mix of sources. The resource mobilization team is responsible for diversifying fundraising
sources, managing interest rate risks and maintaining a strong relationship with banks, financial institutions, mutual funds, insurance companies, other domestic and foreign financial
institutions and rating agencies to ensure the liquidity risk is well addressed. The maturity schedule for all financial liabilities and assets are regularly reviewed and monitored. Company
has a asset liability management (ALM) policy and ALM Committee to review and monitor the liquidity risk and ensure the compliance with the prescribed regulatory requirement. The
ALM Policy prescribes the detailed guidelines for managing the liquidity risk.

The table in Note No. 40.7 provide details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial assets and liabilities as at year end.
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2020

(All amount in X, unless otherwise stated)

39. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures
This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet items that

contain financial instruments,

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are
recognised in respect of each class of Financial asset, Financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements.

A) Categories of Financial Instruments

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments:

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 | As at April 01, 2018
Carrying Value Fair Value | Carrying Value Fair Value '[' aryiﬁg Value Fair Value

Financial Assets [

a) Measured at Amortised Cost

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 26,73,62,459 26,73,62,459 28,12,68,879 28,12,68,879 25,54,96,830 25,54,96,830
ii) Other Bank Balances 55,99,24,920 55,99,24,920 33,64,54,499 33,64,54,499 22,90,28,421 22,90,28,421
iii) Trade Receivables 1,15,302 1,15,302 14,48,782 14,48,782 48,28,899 48,28,899
iv) Loans 4,65,50,74,477 | 4,65,50,74,477 | 3,91,09,12,864 | 3,91,09,12,864 | 2,28,28,20,553 | 2,28,28,20,553
'.‘i.) Other Financial Assets 19,38J_.’:'_;2.J$§2 19,38 52 842 15.40.44,327 15,40,44,327 9,62,27,526 9,62,27,526
Sub-total 5,67,63,30,000 | 5,67,63,30,000 | 4,68,41,29,351 | 4,68,41,29,351 | 2,86,84,02,229 | 2,86,84,02,229
b) Measured at Fair value through Profit or

Loss

1) Investments 50,33.593 50.33,593

Sub-total 50,33,593 _50,33,593 -
Total Financial Assets 5,68,13,63,593 | 5,68,13,63,593 | 4,68,41,29,351 | 4,68,41,29,351 | 2,86,84,02,229 | 2,86,84,02,229
Financial liabilities

a) Measured at Amortised Cost

i) Payables 1,68,53,409 1,68,53,409 2,13,97,416 2,13,97,416 2,18,72,774 2,18,72,774
i) Debt Securities 80,70,31,446 81,36,89,747 57,91,23,752 60,39,64,803 - =
iii) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 3,85,01,49,275 | 3,92,33,52,896 | 3,29,27,61,405 | 3,29,93,09,102 | 2,12,57,46,549 | 2,14,03,81,725
iv) Subordinated Liabilities 5.00.41,802 5,02,25,317 ) §
Total Financial Liabilities 4,72,40,75,932 4.80.41,21,369 | 3,89,32,82,573 | 3,92,46,71,321 | 2,14,76,19,323 | 2,16,22,54,499

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and measured at fair
value in the Company’s financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below methodologies and assumptions relate

only to the instruments in the above tables.

Loans Measured at Amortised Cost

The management assessed the fair values of loans approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Other Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost
For other financial assets that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying amounts, which are net of impairment, are a reasonable

approximation of their fair value. Such instruments include: cash, cash equivalents, other bank balances, Trade receivables and Other financial assets.

Debt Securities, Subordinated Liabilities and Other Borrowings Measured at Amortised Cost
The fair values of debts are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on observable future cash flows based on terms, discounted at a rate that

reflects market risks.

Other Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost
For other financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of their fair
value. Such instruments include Trade and Other payables.




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements
{All amount in X, unless otherwise stated)

39. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures {continued)

B. Fair Value Hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3, as described below:

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity and mutual funds instruments

that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity and mutual funds instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example over-the counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level

3

Eair Walue Hisrarchy of Financial Assets and Financial Liahilities:

Ao a1 March 35, 2020
Lorwel 1 Level 2 Lirveel 3 Total
Financisl Atets
Loans & 50 50 8 ATT £ 555078 477
IS oo AR 599 SOA5503
Bhes Financial fssets 19, 33 52 547 E0 3351 E47
LS E R E] - AR R 2T N ARS8 600912
Fingimial Liakel]ries
Doyt Savpui s - - {1,710, 81,485 ¥, T2, N1, As6
Borrotatings |Oithair thiaes Dilit Socuribe| - I L LAS.OL A% 275
|Gt dinated Liahiigas - 50041, B0 004, 80T
4,1,72,22.513 8,7, 72,2252
As at March 31, 2019
Lwml L. level 2 loveld ! Tatal
Financial Assets
Loans 3,91,09,12,864 3,91,09,12,864|
Dther Financial Assets 15.40.44 327 154044327
- - 4,06,49,57.191 4,06,49,57.191
Financial liabilities |
Debt Securities 57,91,23,752 57,91,23,752
Borrowings {Other than Debt Securities) | 3,29,27,61,405 3,29,27,61,405
: | = 3,87,18,85,157 3,87,18,85,157
As @b Apcll 01, 2018
Level 1 Lirval ¥ Lewal § Tatal
Financial dazers -
Loans - 12808 20 955 1382820553
Other Hnancial Assety - 96121526 WEL 2T 526
- - 1,37 50,048,008 1,37 50, 85070
Fimarzial lakilites
|Borioings jCHner then Debt Secuites) = = 125 A LEE L 1T 57 45 583
- 2,12,57.48,508 | 212.57,96.548 |
Falr Vaboe of the Comparey's Ases and Uisbilites thet sre Measured at Fad Value on § Besurring Bagh
. Fair Value as at Fair Value uadon 1 significant
Particulars ) Technique and
March 31, 2020 | March 31,2019 | April 01, 2018 Hierarchy Unobservable Input
— — Key g
Financial Assets
Loans 4,65,50,74,477 3,91,09,12,864 2,28,28,20,553 Level 3 Note (i) Note (i)
Investments 50,33,593 Level 1 Note (ii) N/A
Other Financial Assets 19,38,52,842 15,40,44,327 9,62,27,526 Level 3 Note (i) Note (i)
Financial liabilities
Debt Securities 81,36,89,747 60,39,64,803 Level 3 Note (iii) Note (iii)
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 3,92,33,52,896 |  3,29,93,09,102 2,14,03,81,725 Level 3 Note (iii) Note (iii}
Subordinated Liabilities 5,02,25,317 I Level 3 Note (iii) Note (iii)




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
{All amount in X, unless otherwise stated)

{1) income Approach.

The discounted cash flow method was used to capture the present value of the expected future benefits to be derived from the Loan Assets and Other Financial Assets, However,
since these loans and financials assets have short term maturity, the fair value approximates the carrying value.

{1i) Quoted Prices.
Quoted bid prices of an active market was used.
{iil) Discount rate, determined using the average cost of lending of the company.

Reconciliation of Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

Reconcillation

Opening Balance

Issuances

Settlements

Closing Balance

Unrealised Gains and Losses related to Balances held at the end of the period

Loans
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
3,91,09,12,864 2,28,28,20,553
6,92,25,25,000 6,11,34,15,000
6.17.83.63.387 4,48,53,22,689

4,65,50,74,477

3,91,09,12,864

C. Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of Financial Assets that are not derecognised in their entirety :

Assignment: The company has carried out an securitisation transaction wherein it has securitised loans to banks. Even though the loan assets have been securitised, the company still
holds the right (legal as well as contractual) to recover the entire overdue balance in respect of these loan assets. Further, the returns are dependent on the realisation from the
securitised loan assets, leading to company bearing the risk of non-realisation from the pool.

The table below outlines the carrying amounts and fair values of all financial assets transferred that are not derecognised in their entirety and associated liabilities.

Particulars | As at March 31,' As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019 _2018*

Carrying Amount of Assets 1,15,91,990 19,é2,60,711

Carrying Amount of Associated Liabilities 2,13,41,959 19,59,58,591

Fair Value of Assets 1,15,91,990 19,82,60,711

Fair Value of Associated Liabilities 2.13.41.959 19.59,58.591

* The company has chosen to apply the de-recognition requirements of Ind AS - 109 prospectively by choosing_the first-time exemptions provided by Ind AS - 101.




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
(All amount in X, unless otherwise stated)

40: RBI Disclosures

40.1 Disclosure as required under RBI Master Direction DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016 (as amended) :

Caplal to Risk Assets Ratio

As at March 31, As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
Rartitlars 2020 2019* 2018*

Tier | Capital 95,57,84,051 80,70,79,016 73.36,15.483
Tier I Capital 9,85,56,390 NIl Nil

Total 1,05,43,40,441 80,70,79,016 73,36,15,483

_Il'otal Risk Weigbted Assets 5,35,12,08,841 4,29,85,91,954 | 2.66.85.06.435

| Capital Ratios:

Tier | Capital . ¢ 27.49%
! ier | Capital as a percentage of Total Risk Weighted Assets (%) 17.86% 18.78% %

. - . . 1

| Tier Il Capital as a percentage of Total Risk Weighted Assets (%) 1.84% Nli NI
Total Capital (%) 19.70% 18.78% 27.49%)|

* The details as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are as per previous period financial statements prepared in accordénce with generally accepted accounting
principles in India (Indian GAAP) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 ("Previous GAAP").

40.2 Investments

e ieilars [ AsatMarch31, | AsatMarch31, | AsatMarch31,
| | 2020 2019 2018
'HDFC Liquid Fund - Mutual Fund (fully in India) 50,33,593
40.3 Ratings —

Particulars Rating Agency Ratings Date Valid upto Amount
Term Borrowings from Banks and Sub Debt Aquite BBB+ 26/03/2020 18/06/2021 |250.00 Crore
Non Convertible Debentures | ICRA BBB- 29/10/2018 28/10/2022 |35.00 Crore
Non Convertible Debentures ICRA BBB- 11/12/2019 10/12/2020 [22.00 Crore

40.4 The Company has no exposure to Capital Market (apart from indirect exposure through Investments in Mutual Funds as disclosed above) or has not issued any

Gold Loans.

40.5 Exposure to real estate sector, both direct & indirect

The Company does not have any direct or indirect exposure to the real estate sector as at March 31, 2020.

40.6 Other Disclosures

The Company, during the current year and previous year, has no exposure in derivatives. It has also not transferred any loans through securitization nor has
purchased or sold any non-performing financial assets during the said periods. The Company has not engaged in financing of any holding company products.
During the year, no Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) was exceeded by the Company.

The Company is not registered with any from other financial sector regulators.
During the Current and Previous Years, no penalties were imposed by the RBI and other regulators.

There were no Draw Down from Reserves, Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs during the current and previous years.
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
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40.8 Movement of Loan and Estimated Credit Loss [ECL]

. Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Particulars Total
(PAR 0-30) (PAR 31-90) (PAR > 91) ota
Gross Carrying Value of Assets as at March 31, 2019 3,93,82,01,895 33,77,503 90,85,631| 3,95,06,65,029
New Assets originated during the year, netted off for
. . 77,37,23,918 58,41,504 1,03,37,002 78,99,02,424
repayments and derecognised portfolio
Assets written off during the vear (60,05,593) (60,05,5931
Movement between Stages -
Transfer to Stage 1 11,12,761 (10,54,598) (58,163) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (15,41,336) 15,41,336 <
Transfer to Stage 3 (1,09,07,431) (98,150]) 1,10,05,581 -
Gross Carrying Value of Assets as at March 31, 2020 4,70,05,89,807 96,07,595 2,43,64,458 | 4,73,45,61,860
. Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Particulars Total
(PAR 0-30) (PAR 31-90) (PAR > 91)
ECL Allowance as at March 31, 2019 2,80,94,166 29,84,010 86,73,989 3,97.52,165
New Assets origi i
ew Assets originated dur.mg the year., netted off for 2,04,96,031 48,40,255 95,56,095 3,48,92,381
repavments and derecognised portfolio
Assets written off during the year (56,36,849) (56,36,849)
Movement between Stages
Transfer from Stage 1 3,318 (6,46,584) (54,592) (6.97,858)
Transfer from Stage 2 (4,596] 9,45,007 - 9,40,410
Transfer from Stage 3 (32,528 (60,177) 1,03,29,838 1,02,37,133
ECL Allowance as at March 31, 2020 4,85,56,391 80,62,511 2,28,68,481 7,94,87,383
. Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Total
Particulars (PAR 0-30) (PAR 31-90) (PAR > 91)
Gross CarryinE_Value of Assets as at March 31, 2018 2,28,03,79,605 37,75,477 2,19,17,543 | 2,30,60,72,625
New Assets originated dur‘mg the year., netted off for 1,65,78,86,455 (2,95,685) 4168,965 | 1,66,17,59,735
repayments and derecognised portfolio
Assets written off during the year (1,71,67,331) (1,71,67,331)
Movement between Stages
Transfer to Stage 1 :
Transfer to Stage 2 - ~
Transfer to Stage 3 (64,165) (1,02,289] 1,66,454 -
Gross Carrying Value of Assets as at March 31, 2019 3,93,82,01,895 33,77,503 90,85,631 | 3,95,06,65,029
. Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
lar Total
Particulars (PAR 0-30) (PAR 31-90) (PAR > 91)
ECL Allowance as at March 31, 2018 1,18,63,747 3,26,732 1,10,61,593 2,32,52,072
New Assets originated dur.lng the year., netted off for 1,62,30,610 27.19,992 1,35,69,419 3,25,20,021
repayments and derecognised portfolio
Assets written off during the year - (1,61,13,257) (1,61,13,257)
Movement between Stages
Transfer to Stage 1 =
Transfer to Stage 2 - - =
Transfer to Stage 3 (191) (62,714) 1,56,234 93,329
ECL Allowance as at March 31, 2019 2,80,94,166 29,84,010 86,73,989 3,97,52,165
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2020
{All amount in X, unless otherwise stated)

42: First Time Ad of ind AS {c d)

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain pti from the retrospective ication of certain requirements under ind AS.

The Company has applied for the foliowing exemptions:

1. Property, Plant, Equipment & Intangible Assets

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as at March 31, 2018, measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that carrying
value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as on April 1, 2018

2. Estimates

The estimates at April 1, 2018 and at March 31, 2019 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with Previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies).
The estimates used by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at April 1, 2018 and as of March 31, 2019.

3. Classification of Measurement of Financial Assets

The classification of financial assets to be measured at amortized cost or fair value through Profit and Loss is made on the basis of facts and circumstances that existed on the date of transition to Ind AS

Batimspkitipe ol Grhe By

Particulars Note | AsatMarch31, As at April 01,
,m_g min
Other Equity as per Previous GAAP o 1 38 4_1395*482 : ____306KRA0476
Re-measurements on transition to Ind AS -
a. Interest income and expenses recognition using effective interest rate (EIR) method on financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost (D) (58,20,489-) T (1,32,112)
b. Expected Credit Loss [} [22.84,323] -
C. Deferred Tax on above adjustments fiv) o 23 60123 38472
|Catesr Fryife an mesermed urder rd A 378451793 | 0 £7 46 836 |
Retaschition =f T Cangrsliibe biloems .
Particulars Note | For the year ended March
mame
Profit after Tax as reported under previous GAAP 10 51 47 60! 1
Adjustments on account of:
A BT O g 100 of SRBEE SR §) IRSNIEE ot by agpk of effective mutw [EIR} hod (&) 1129.12.383 |
Adjitrrer on ool oF §e @eiiE b i w0 EFnnasd ord by smpkossan gl sffecies menem s (EIR) method {1 72.24 006
Adjustment on account of impairment allowance under Expected Credit Loss (ECL} (] (22,84,323)
RptlaieFaplin of /b Pliaiisl [0 08 BT{asess iefin pd Dassii ablguion m Diker Corpresarrss o (OCH { (1.28,6161
Tax Impact on above adjustments [ 2359104
Profit after Tax as per IND AS 994 05393
Other Comprehensive income, net of tax 91,163
Terted Corrgrewbureibys b pioterpell e La] 4 i dsce B0 AL | 9.94,96,556
Secorelimen of Cah R Haterram As at March 31, 2019
Particulars = Note Previous Effect of IndAS transition Ind AS
As per Previous GAAP =z ¥
et cash flow from operating activities 15 R—'.’,‘!il 113413 19035 (218411313} m‘yjo 348
Net cash flow from investing activities fui} 112,85 61.281| (42.83,329) 113.28 44 610}
Net cash flow from financing activities (v} & [vi} 1.49,56,52.365 222694642 1.71 83.47 007
I i in Cah wd Ch Eyskealuiin 25772048 2,57.72.048 |
Pstrinn o the reiifiatn of evits 5 o1 Man B I0EE o apnl 29, 008 srel Tosat Campreveeaien o e vk il Magh H 2008

(1) Measurement of financial assets and financlal liabilities at amortised cost

Under Previous GAAP, alt financial assets and financial liabilities were carried at cost Under ind AS, certain financial assets and financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost which involves the application of
effective interest method. In applying the effective interest method, an entity identifies fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate of a financial instrument The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the d life of the fi ial asset or fi ial liability to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

(I1) Expected Credit Loss Allowances on Financlal Assets measured at amortized cost

Under Previous GAAP, the impairment provisioning in respect of a NBFC-ND-NSI was governed by the principles as prescribed by the RBI through NBFC-ND-NSI Directions.

Under Ind AS, a loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised on financial assets carried at amortized cost. Expected credit losses {with the exception of purchased or original credit-impaired financial assets) are required
to be measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses; or Lifetime expected credit losses if credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition of the financial instrument.

(ill) Re-measurement Galns and Losses on Defined Benefit Plans
Under previous GAAP, actuarial gains and losses related to the defined benefit schemes for gratuity were recognised in profit or loss. Under Ind AS, the actuarial gains and losses form part of remeasurement of the net defined
benefit liability/asset which is recognised in OCI. Consequently, the tax effect of the same has also been recognised in Other Comprehensive Income {OCl) instead of profit or loss.

{iv) Tax Impact on above adjustments
The above adjustments have led to recognition of deferred taxes on new temporary differences

) ing up of Coll o g
The Company transfers loan assets under Business Correspondent (BC) arrangements to banks = This do not meet the de-recognition criteria due to risk being retained by the Company. Consequently, proceeds received from
such transactions are recorded as collateralised borrowings and loan assets continue to be recognised in the financial statements. Under the Previous GAAP, such transactions were de-recognised and recorded as a sale.

{vl) Regrouping
The other adjustments regrouping adjustments for certain items from operating and investment activities to financing activities.




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financlal Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2020

(All amount in R, unless otherwise stated)
43: Additional iInformation to the financlal statements

Notes to the balance sheet of a non deposit taking Non Banking Flnancial Company as required under RBI master direction DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 dated september 01, 2016, as
amended

Partlculars Amount Amount
Uabllitles side: Outstanding Overdue

1) Loans & advances avalled by the NBFC inclusive of acarued Interest thereon but not paid

(a) Debentures: Secured 80,70,31,446 Nil

Unsecured Nil Nil

{Other than falling within the ing of public deposits}

(b) Deferred credits Nil N
(c) Term loans 3,90,01,91,077 NI
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowings Nil NI
(e) Commercial papers Nil N
(f) Public deposits Nil Ni
(g) Other loans (specify nature) Nil Ni

2) Break-up of (1){f) above {Outstanding public deposits Inclusive of Interest accrued thereon but not pald):
(a) In the form of unsecured debentures N Ni

{b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debenture where there is a shortfall in the value of security

Ni N§
{c) Other public deposits Ni NI
Partlculars Amount
Assets Side: Outstanding
3) Break-up of loans and advances Including bllls recelvables[other than those Included in (4} below]
(a) Secured Nil
(b} Unsecured 4,65,50,74,477
4) Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and
other assets counting towards AFC activities.
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors
(a) Financial lease Nil
(b) Operating lease Nil
{ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
(a) Asset on hire Nil
(b) Repossessed assets Nil
{iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities.
(a) Loans where assets has been repossessed Nil
{b) Loans other than (a) above Nil
5) Break up of Investments
Amount
Current Investments outstanding
(A) Quoted:
(i) Shares : (a) Equity Nil
(b) Preference Nil
(i) Debentures and bonds Nil
{iii) Units of mutual funds 50,33,593
{iv) Government securities Nil
(v} Others (please specify) Nil
{(B) Unquoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity Nil
(b} Preference Nil
(ii) Debentures and bonds Nil
{iii} Units of mutual funds Nil
(iv) Government securities Nil
(v) Others (please specify) Nil
Amount
Long term Investments outstanding
(A} Quoted:
{i} Shares: {a) Equity Nil
{b) Preference Nil
(ii) Debentures and bonds Nil
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil
{iv) Government securities Nil
{v) Others (please specify) Nil
{B) Unquoted:
(i) Shares : (a) Equity Nil
(b) Preference Nil
(i) Debentures and bonds Nil
(i) Units of mutual funds Nil
(iv) Government securities Nil
(v) Others (please specify) Nil




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financlal Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2020
(Allamount in X, unless otherwise stated)

6) Borrower group -wise classification of assets, financed (3) and (4) above:

Category Amount net of provisions
(i) Related parties Secured Unsecured Total
(a) Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nil
(b) Companies in the same group Nil Nil Nil
(c) Other related parties Nil Nil Nil
(i) Other than related parties Nil 4,65,50,74,477 4,65,50,74,477
Total Nil 4,65,50,74,477 4,65,50,74,477

7) Investor group wise classification of all Investments (Current and long term) In shares and securlties (both quoted and unquoted category}

Market value/Break-
up on fair value or

Particulars NAV Book value

(i) Related parties
(a) Subsidiaries Nit Nil
(b) Companies in the same group Nil Nil
{c) Other related parties Nil Nil

(it) Other than related parties Nil Ni

8) Other Information:

Particulars
(i} Gross non-performing assets*
(3) Related parties Nil
(b) Other than related parties 2,43,64,458
(i) Net non performing assets*
(a) Related parties Nit
{b) Other than related parties 14,95,978
(iii} Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt Nil

* Non-performing assets represents Stage 3 contracts i.e. which are overdue for more than 90 days.

44: Segment Information
The Company is engaged in taking loans from banks and financial institutions and provide finance to members in India. Consequently, there are no separate reportable segments as per 'ind AS 108",

45: Impact of COVID-19 Pandemlc

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic across the globe and in India has contributed to a significant decline and volatility in the global and Indian financial markets and slowdown in the economic
activities. The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has issued guidelines relating to COVID-19 Regulatory Package dated March, 27, 2020 and April 17, 2020 and May 23,2020 and in accordance therewith, the
Company has proposed an initial moratorium of three months on the payment of all principal instalments and/or interest, as applicable falling due between April, 2020 and May 31,2020 to all eligible
borrowers classified as standard, even if over due as on February 29, 2020, excluding the collections made/already made in the month of March 2020, as per the RBI guidelines and approval by its
Board of directors. Further, the Company has, based on current available information and based on the policy approved by the board determined the provision for impairment of financial assets.

Given the uncertainty over the potential macro-economic impact, the Company’s management has considered internal and external information upto the date of approval of these financial statement.
Based on the current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company considers this provision to be adequate and expects to recover the carrying amount of these financial assets.

The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company’s future results/financial position will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain. Given the uncertainty over the
potential macro-economic condition, the impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and the Company will
continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

46: Previous Year's Flgures
Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification / disclosure.

47: Adoption In Board Meeting
This Financial Statements together with the Accounting Policies and Notes have been adopted in the Meeting of the Board dated 29 July 2020,

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Jagaran Microfin Private Limited
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